
AGENDA 
Commissioners' Meeting 

May 23, 2023 (Hybrid Meeting) 

5:00 P.M. 

1. Call to Order/Flag Salute

2. Approval of the Agenda

3. Commissioner Absence

4. Communications – See Attached

5. Approve minutes of May 9, 2023 Commissioner meeting

6. Voucher Approval
 Accounts Payable Vouchers:  199356-199429 $   167,445.37 
 Payroll Vouchers 199340-199355: $1,001,017.87 

SUBTOTAL VOUCHERS: $1,168,463.24   

ACH Payroll Transfer: $ 1,105,283.82 
 941 Payment – ACH Payroll Transfer $    247,641.72 
 Wire Transfer Fees $             80.00   

SUBTOTAL PAYROLL ACH TRANSFERS: $ 1,353,005.54 

GRAND TOTAL VOUCHERS AND ACH TRANSFERS:   $ 2,521,468.78 

7. Local 3390 Reports

8. Chiefs Reports

9. Standing Committee Reports

10. Finance Report K. Hackmeister

11. Chairman’s Report

12. 2022 Bond Update

13. EXECUTIVE SESSION pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) to review the performance of a public
employee. 

P. Oldenburg
J. Black

K. Hackmeister
K. Hackmeister

14. OLD BUSINESS
a.
b.

15. NEW BUSINESS
a. 2023 Contract for Fire Protection Services
b. Retiree Medical Program Application
c. Capital Asset Policy
d. 2022 Annual Report

16. Open Public Comment (state your name for the record, you will have 3 minutes)

17. GOOD OF THE ORDER

18. SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS

Adjourn Meeting.  Next regular meeting will be June 13, 2023, at 5:00 PM





 

 
 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING MINUTES 
May 9, 2023 

Chairman Urvina called the meeting to order at 5:01 p.m. and led the flag salute. 
 
Present: Commissioners Urvina, Wilsie, Nelson, Entze and Sutich, F/C D. Doan, A/Cs T. Meyer, 
J. Black and EA T. VanderVaate.   

 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
Commissioners Entze and Wilsie moved and seconded approval of the agenda as presented. With 
no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

 
COMMISSIONER ABSENCE 
 
COMMUNICATIONS  
 
MINUTES AND BLANKET VOUCHERS 
Commissioners Wilsie and Entze moved and seconded approval of the April 25, 2023 meeting 
minutes.  With no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
Commissioners Nelson and Entze moved and seconded approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers 
199267-199339 as set forth in the agenda for a total consideration of $600,404.11.  With no 
further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

 
LOCAL 3390 REPORTS 
 
CHIEFS REPORTS 
 
Chief Meyer reported: 
 Tacoma Fire Department conducted confined space training at our training facility last 

week. 
 The District has completed annual wildland refresher training and expressed appreciation 

for a property owner in the Crescent Valley area for partnering with us for that training. 
 Training this week at the Gig Harbor Marina, another great partnership and training 

opportunity. 
 Next week he and Chief Dumas will be participating in a year end CCTE Advisory 

Committee meeting. 
 On May 30th the District is hosting a Pierce County Fire Chiefs wildland pre-season 

meeting with federal/state and local partners attending. 
 



 
Board of Commissioners 

05‐09‐2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

Chief Doan reported: 
 *NOTE:  During this portion of the meeting the Board chair was notified of a 

technical error and that no audio was being broadcast to the livestream recording.  
The Board Chair made an announcement and the motions referenced above were 
again made so they appear in the recorded record. 

 The District will be filing the Resolution and Explanatory Statement with the County for 
the general levy lid lift. 

 He will be attending and speaking at an IAFF conference in Kennewick next week. 
 He is attending the annual Washington Fire Chiefs Conference in Wenatchee the week of 

May 22-25. 
 He and Chief Meyer will be interviewing candidates for a lieutenant promotion. 
 He is scheduled to meet with Katrina Knutsen at the City of Gig Harbor on Friday. 
 Robyn Denson was sponsored by Key Peninsula and Local 3390 to attend firefighter 

training in Boise. 
 He will be on vacation June 6-12, 2023. 
 He is scheduled to meet with Penmet Parks Executive Director next week. 
 District staff are working on long range planning.  A presentation was made this week to 

Command and General Staff and he will be bringing more information to the Board in the 
near future. 

 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
OLD BUSINESS  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
A.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to discuss, Chairman Urvina adjourned the meeting at 5:10pm.  

The next regular meeting will be 5:00pm on Tuesday, May 23, 2023. 

 

 
Chairman/Commissioner 

 



 
Board of Commissioners 

05‐09‐2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 
Commissioner 

 

 
Commissioner 

 

 
Commissioner 

 
 

Commissioner 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Attest:  District Secretary 



PAYROLL: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 199340 through 199355 1,001,017.87$    1,001,017.87$     
(Benefit & L&I Monthly Payment)

1,105,283.82$    1,105,283.82$     
941 ACH Payroll Transfer Amount: 247,641.72$       247,641.72$        

Wire Fees Transfer Amount: 80.00$                80.00$                 

2,354,023.41$   GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE & PAYROLL:

VOUCHER APPROVAL: May 8, 2023
APPROVED BY Krystal Hackmeister

ACH Payroll Transfer Amount:



VOUCHER APPROVALS
Pierce County Fire District #5 Time: 07:53:16 Date: 05/08/2023

05/26/2023 To: 05/26/2023 Page: 1

Voucher Claimant Trans Date Type Acct # Amount Memo

   199340 AFLAC 1602 05/26/2023 Payroll 1 2,594.89

   199341 BHT BUSINESS SERVICES 
INDUSTRY

1603 05/26/2023 Payroll 1 7,754.91

   199342 COLUMBIA BANK 1604 05/26/2023 Payroll 1 23,316.50

   199343 DEPT LABOR & INDUSTRIES 1605 05/26/2023 Payroll 1 89,115.45

   199344 Employment Security Dept - 
PFMLA&LTC

1606 05/26/2023 Payroll 1 14,257.66

   199345 GHFFU HEALTH & WELFARE 1607 05/26/2023 Payroll 1 144,124.58

   199346 KEY BANK - DECISION POINT 1608 05/26/2023 Payroll 1 215,890.95

   199347 KEY BANK - FIDELITY 1609 05/26/2023 Payroll 1 15,207.52

   199348 LOCAL 3390 GHFUHW TRUST 1610 05/26/2023 Payroll 1 210,860.31

   199349 Local 3390 GHFUHW Trust 1611 05/26/2023 Payroll 1 17,378.22

   199350 THE HARTFORD 1612 05/26/2023 Payroll 1 7,504.17

   199351 TRUSTMARK VOLUNTARY 
BENEFITS

1613 05/26/2023 Payroll 1 6,916.26

   199352 VISION SERVICE PLAN - AT 1614 05/26/2023 Payroll 1 69.45

   199353 WASHINGTON PER SYSTEM
EMP

1615 05/26/2023 Payroll 1 23,184.01

   199354 WASHINGTON STATE 
TREASURER

1616 05/26/2023 Payroll 1 21,977.00

   199355 WLEO & FFR SYSTEM EMPE 1617 05/26/2023 Payroll 1 200,865.99

1,001,017.87Total Vouchers:



VOUCHER APPROVALS
Pierce County Fire District #5 Time: 07:53:16 Date: 05/08/2023

05/26/2023 To: 05/26/2023 Page: 2

Voucher Claimant Trans Date Type Acct # Amount Memo

Commissioner Signatures:

=

________________________________________  ________________________________________
Chair

=

________________________________________  ________________________________________

==

________________________________________  

=

CERTIFICATION: I, the undersigned do hereby certify under penalty of perjury, that the materials have been 
furnished, the services rendered or the labor performed as described and that the claim is a due and unpaid 
obligation against Pierce County Fire District #5 and that I am authorized to authenticate and certify to said 
claim.

=

________________________________________    _______________
District Secretary                                                              Date                                                                         

=



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 199356 through 199401 129,819.00$              129,819.00$                        

129,819.00$              129,819.00$                        

 

129,819.00$                     

VOUCHER APPROVAL: May 9, 2023

APPROVED BY FINANCE DIRECTOR KRYSTAL HACKMEISTER

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 5/10/23



















ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 199402 through 199402 12,000.00$                12,000.00$                          
199403 through 199429 25,626.37$                25,626.37$                          

37,626.37$                37,626.37$                          
 

37,626.37$                       

VOUCHER APPROVAL: May 16, 2023
APPROVED BY ASSISTANT CHIEF OLDENBURG

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 5/17/23















Pierce County Fire Protection District #5
Monthly Financial Dashboard Report
APR‐2023 April 30, 2023

OPERATING REVENUES Amended Budget April YTD % of Budget Highlights: 

Taxes 32,153,373           11,689,178  14,288,962   44.44% Expected

Intergovernmental 1,744,125              102,142        956,139        54.82% Expected

Charges for Service 1,674,399              185,502        755,528        45.12% Expected

Other/Non‐Revenue 142,135                 15,834          117,053        82.35% Expected

Transfers/BFB Carryover 1,175,243              ‐                 ‐                 0.00% Budget Amendment Items

Total Revenues: 36,889,275           11,992,656  16,117,681   43.69% Expected

OPERATING EXPENSES: Amended Budget April YTD % of Budget Highlights: 

Salaries 22,983,970           1,724,423     7,071,520     30.8% Expected

Benefits 6,885,138              541,795        2,142,880     31.1% Expected

Supplies 1,959,898              93,735          395,352        20.2% Expected

Services 3,731,016              307,840        999,943        26.8% Expected

Capital Improvements 1,011,000              9,638            400,561        39.6% Expected

Debt Service ‐                         ‐                 ‐                 0.0% N/A

Transfers ‐                         ‐                 ‐                 0.0% N/A

Total Expenses:  36,571,022           2,677,432     11,010,257   30.1% Expected

EXPENSES BY DIVISION: Amended Budget April  YTD  % of Budget Highlights: 

Legislative 381,694                 22,342          121,762        31.9% Expected

Finance & Admin 2,350,674              146,202        654,481        27.8% Expected

Operations 24,776,080           1,842,070     7,355,491     29.7% Expected

Logistics 6,631,065              486,062        2,056,858     31.0% Expected

Health & Safety 2,127,666              155,514        717,708        33.7% Expected

Capital/Bond 303,843                 25,242          103,957        34.2% Expected

Total Expenses:  36,571,022           2,677,432     11,010,257   30.1% Expected

CAPITAL FUND (BOND): Amended Budget April  YTD  % of Budget Highlights: 

Project Management 501,343                 ‐                 2,482             0.5% Expected

Training Campus 8,005,845              230,852        564,253        7.0% Expected

Station 57 244,291                 52,297          84,404           34.6% Expected

Station 53 100,458                 50,523          81,951           81.6% Expected

Station 51 749,432                 ‐                 ‐                 0.0% Expected

Total Capital Projects: 9,601,369              333,672        733,089        7.6% Expected

ENDING CASH: 12/31/2022 4/30/2023 12/31/2021 Highlights: 

General Expense  12,624,848           16,310,342   11,941,200  

Reserve Fund 6,961,915              8,291,001     6,847,720    

Capital Fund* 50,139,722           50,473,770   ‐                 *Restricted use for eligible projects

Debt Fund (GO BOND) 143,711                 1,694,311     ‐                

PCSORT* 110,878                 108,745        134,772         *Restricted, GHFMO is Lead Agency 

Total: 69,981,074           76,878,169   18,923,692  



2022 Year End 
Financial Update

K.Hackmeister

May 2023



2022 Cash & Investments

Interest 
Received in 
2022

Ending Fund Cash & 
Investments 

General Expense 115,476 12,625,143

Reserve Fund 114,197 6,961,915

GO Bond (Debt Service Fund) - 143,711

Capital Fund 139,722 50,139,722

Total 369,395 69,870,491

PCSORT (Fiscal Custodian) 110,878

• Investments held in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP)
• December’s LGIP Rate was 4.10%



Investment Performance

 -

 0.500

 1.000

 1.500

 2.000

 2.500

 3.000

 3.500

 4.000

 4.500

 -

 10,000,000

 20,000,000

 30,000,000

 40,000,000

 50,000,000

 60,000,000

Jan Feb March April May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Investment Balances in 2022

General Reserve Capital Investment Interest Rate



Property Tax

Budget Actuals
% 

Collected

Property Tax – Current 27,827,564 27,521,257 98.9%

Property Tax - Delinquent - 235,920 -

Total 27,827,564 27,757,177 99.75%



Ambulance Transport & GEMT

Budget Actuals

GEMT* - 1,635,382

Ambulance 
Transport

2,750,000 1,627,656

Total 2,750,000 3,263,038 0
100,000
200,000
300,000
400,000
500,000
600,000
700,000
800,000

EMS Transport Collections in 2022

GEMT Payment Program Ambulance & Emergency Aid

*GEMT was previously budgeted in Charges for Services



Revenues
Budget Revenue % Collected

Cash Forward

Taxes 27,827,564 27,757,177 99.7%

Intergovernmental* 684,710 2,390,814 349.2%

Charges for Services* 3,165,399 2,304,521 72.8%

Interest & Other Earnings 127,862 154,003 120.4%

Non-Revenue 8,264 -

Other Financing Sources 11,793 -

Total 31,805,535 32,626,572 102.6%

*GEMT was previously budgeted in Charges for Services



Revenue 
Detail

Revenue Type Revenue Description Budget Actuals
Taxes Property Taxes - Current 27,827,564 27,521,257 

Property Taxes - Delinquent - 235,920 
Intergovernmental Federal Direct Grant From The Department Of Homeland Security. 650,000 531,407 

COBRA Payroll Tax Credit - 1,626 

Non-Grant Assistance - 45,991 

GEMT Payment Program - 1,635,382 

Federal Indirect Grant From Department Of Homeland Security - 110,903 

State Grants - 1,125 

State Direct/Indirect Grant From Other State Agencies - 28,444 

Leasehold Excise Taxes 26,033 24,660 

Timber Excise Taxes 8,677 11,276 

Charges for Services Other Intergov Transfers 360 -
Fire Protection Services 415,039 676,866 
Ambulance & Emergency Aid 2,750,000 1,627,656 

Interest & Other 
Earnings Investment Interest 36,132 115,476 

Space & Facilities Rentals (Long-Term) - 425 

Contributions & Donations 3,000 3,646 

Sale of Surplus 7,950 8,896 

Other Fees /Tuition Charges 48,980 9,697 

Other Misc Revenue 31,800 15,863 

Non-Revenue Retainage Deposits - 7,500 

Prior Period Adjustment - 764 
Other Financing 
Sources Compensation for Loss/Impairment of Capital Assets - 11,793 

Total 31,805,535 32,626,571 



2022 Expenses

Category Budget Actuals % 
Spent

Salaries & 
Benefits

26,598,293 26,748,941 100.6%

Supplies 3,307,463 2,002,431 60.5%

Services 3,205,357 2,930,913 91.4%

Capital 351,600

Total 33,111,113 32,033,884 96.7%
26,598,293 

3,307,463 

3,205,357 

26,748,941 

2,002,431 

2,930,913 

351,600 

Salaries & Benefits

Supplies

Services

Capital

2022 Budget vs Actuals

Actuals Budget



Expense Detail



2022 Expenses in upcoming budgets

 Resolution 2023-02 (2/14/23)

 $871,400 carryover request for budgeted 2022 items to be spent in 2023

 Resolution 2023-03 (2/14/23) 

 $830,000 transfer to Reserves for budgeted 2022 items that will arrive and be spent 
in 2024



Expense Highlights

 Salaries & Benefits performed higher than budget across many divisions due to 
the following: 

 24/7 staffing for vacancies, to include training, academies, and staffing. 

 Planned overlap staffing due to retirements for key positions. 

 Additional staffing support for reimbursable Wildland deployments

 Election costs were slightly higher due to District population growth

 Supplies and Services remained under budget, with the key carryover items 
adopted with a Budget Amendment for 2023 spend



Budget vs Actuals Outcome

31,805,535 

33,111,113 

32,626,571 

32,033,884 

 30,000,000

 30,500,000

 31,000,000

 31,500,000

 32,000,000

 32,500,000

 33,000,000

 33,500,000

Revenue Expenses

Budget Actuals



2022 Year End Outcome

2022 Actuals

Revenue $32,626,571

Expenses $32,033,884

Net Cash $592,687



Pierce County Fire Protection District No. 5 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

Note 1 – Basis of Accounting 

This Schedule is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the district’s financial statements. The 
district uses the cash basis of accounting. 

Note 2 – Federal Indirect Cost Rate  

The district has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the 
Uniform Guidance. 

Note 3 – Noncash Awards – Equipment  

The district received equipment and supplies that were purchased with federal Homeland Security funds 
by the city of Seattle. The amount reported on the Schedule is the value of the property on the date it 
was received by the district and priced by the city of Seattle. 

Note 4 – Program Costs  

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal award portion of the 
program costs. Entire program costs, including the district’s portion, are more than shown. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement. 

Note 5 – Other Notes  

The District incurred eligible COVID-19 related grant expenses in 2020 and 2021. The amount of 
$438,988.22 was approved for payment through the COVID-19 Disaster Relief Fund in 2022 and included 
on the District’s 2022 SEFA.  

In 2021, the District returned $45,990.63 in COVID-19 Provider Relief Funds due to a delay in compliance 
reporting due to the Health Resources and Services Administration Reporting Period deadline due to 
staff turnover. In 2022, the Health Resources and Services Administration provided a resubmittal 
window for reissue requests of Provider Relief Funds Period 1. The District submitted the applicable 
reporting during the revised reporting period and the $45,990.63 was reissued to the district in late 
2022.  



Page 1 of  6 

 CONTRACT FOR FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES 
 
THIS CONTRACT is as of the 1st day of January 2023 by and between Pierce County, 

(hereinafter called the "County") and Pierce County Fire District Number Five 

[(operating as the Gig Harbor Fire & Medic One) hereinafter called the "District"]. 

 WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the District provides fire protection services; 

WHEREAS, RCW 52.30.020 directs the County to contract with the District for fire 

protection services; 

WHEREAS, the County owns buildings that are located within or adjacent to the 

territorial limits of the District and are not leased to non tax-exempt persons or 

organizations.   

NOW, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED: 

1. SERVICES 

A. The District agrees to furnish fire protection and basic life support services to 

all improved County properties and the persons located on such properties within 

the District.  Such fire and basic life support services shall be rendered on the 

same basis as such protection is rendered to other areas within the District.   

B. In the event of simultaneous fire or medical aid call whereby facilities of the 

District are utilized beyond its ability to render equal protection, the officers and 

agents of the District shall have discretion as to which call shall be answered 

first.  The District shall be the sole judge as to the most expeditious manner of 

handling and responding to emergency calls. 

C. The District will furnish all personnel, equipment, and tools necessary to 

provide such fire protection and basic life support services. 



Page 2 of  6 

2. TERM/PAYMENT 

A.  The term of this agreement shall commence on January 1, 2023 and continue 

through December 31, 2023 and shall be renewed year-to-year by addendum 

and adjustment to fees, unless sooner terminated by either party as provided in 

this Contract. 

B.  In consideration of the goods and services provided by the District under the 

terms and conditions of this Contract, each year the County shall pay the District 

a fee based upon the sum of the District's regular maintenance and operation 

levy rate plus the District's regular emergency medical services levy rate applied 

to the replacement value of improvements to properties as such values are 

reported and updated annually by Pierce County Risk Management Department 

on their “STATEMENT OF VALUES”, OR, $500.00 whichever is greater.  In all 

cases, “STATEMENT OF VALUES” will be used in calculating the fee and fees 

will be rounded to the nearest whole dollar amount.  In no instance is the County 

subject to the District's special and excess levy rates, bonds, or fire benefit 

charges. 

C.  Further, the County shall establish a $12,500 resource pool, with a 

distribution to the District based upon the total number of emergency responses 

the District makes to improved County properties in the most recently completed 

calendar year relative to the total number of emergency responses made by all 

districts contracting with the County for fire protection services of improved 

County properties in the most recently completed calendar year.  The total value 

of the resource pool is $12,500 in 1993 and will be increased in each subsequent 

year by the same percentage increase as reported by the United States Bureau 

of Labor Statistics as the second half, Seattle area consumer price index for all 

urban consumers (CPI-U).  Distribution of the pool will be adjusted each year to 

reflect the District's portion relative to the total number of emergency responses 

made by all districts contracting with the County for fire protection services of 

improved County properties. 



Page 3 of  6 

D.  Specific properties and fees are described in Schedule A attached hereto and 

made a part of this Contract.  If there is an increase or decrease in the 

replacement value of improvements to properties upon which payment under this 

Contract is based, the County will adjust the fee annually and incorporate the 

change automatically into this Contract. 

E.  Payment shall be made on or after June 30th of the contract year. 

F.  Each of the parties shall, at all times, be solely responsible for the acts, or 

failure to act, of its personnel that occur or arise in any way out of the 

performance of this contract by its personnel only, and to save and hold the other 

party and its personnel and officials harmless from all costs, expenses, losses, 

and damage, including costs of defense, incurred as a result of any acts or 

omissions of the parties' personnel relating to the performance of this Contract. 

G.  This agreement may be terminated at any time by either party hereto after 

thirty (30) days written notice. 

3.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

No other understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of the 

contract shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto. 

4.  FUTURE NON-ALLOCATION OF FUNDS 

If sufficient funds are not appropriated or allocated for payment under this 

contract for any future fiscal period, the County will not be obligated to make 

payments for services or amounts incurred after the end of the current fiscal 

period.  No penalty or expense shall accrue to the County in the event this 

provision applies.  In consideration thereof, the District will not be obligated to 

provide services after the end of the current fiscal period, in the event that the 

County invokes the provision contained in this paragraph. 

5.  AMENDMENT 

This contract and any alteration, amendment, modification, or waiver of any 

clause or condition thereof is subject to the written approval of the County 

Executive or the Executive's delegate, and shall not be binding upon the County 

until so approved, except as set forth in paragraph 2D. above. 



Page 4 of 6 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said District has executed this instrument and the said 

Pierce County has caused this instrument to be executed by its Executive the day and 

year first above written.  

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS: PIERCE COUNTY: 

___________________________________ 
Pierce County Executive 

__________________________________ 
Chairperson  

___________________________________ 
Risk Management Department 

__________________________________ 
Fire Commissioner  

___________________________________ 
Director, Finance Department 

__________________________________ 
Fire Commissioner  

___________________________________ 
Director, Facilites Management 

__________________________________ 
Fire Commissioner  

__________________________________ 
Fire Commissioner  

Approved as to form: 

___________________________________ 
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 



Page 5 of 6 

  Schedule A 
 
This is Schedule A to the contract agreement between Pierce County and Pierce 
County Fire District Number 5 (operating as Gig Harbor Fire & Medic One). 
 
It is an extension of, the original contract number(s) as allowed by paragraph 2.D. of the 
same.  This adjusts the contract payments per the agreed upon formula and extends 
the period of performance through midnight, December 31, 2023. 
 
The County hereby agrees to pay the District the following sum per year, which shall 
commence at 12:00 midnight, December 31, 2022 and terminate at 12:00 midnight, 
December 31, 2023, as consideration for providing fire protection and basic life support 
services for the County-owned buildings, equipment, and other property described 
below: 
 
 



Property Description including 
Parcel #

Fee Based on 
Formula 

paragraph 2B

Fee From 
Emergency 

Service Pool 
Distribution

Amount to 
be Paid Company Fund Cost Center/Location/Program

Business 
Unit

Spend 
Category

Tacoma Narrows Airport
0221321008  $            15,395  $                     179  $        15,574 Public Works & Utilities 460-00

Program: PW414
Cost Center: PW-Airport - Tacoma Narrows 
Administration
Location: Tacoma Narrows Airport 54600P0 50.000200

Purdy Shops
0122244017  $              1,838  $                        -    $          1,838 Public Works & Utilities 150-00

Program: PW398
Cost Center: PW M&O Maintenance Activities 54350P0 50.000200

Peninsula Precinct
0122244017  $              1,868  $                        -    $          1,868 Facilities Maintenance 503-00

Program: Facilities - Peninsula Detachment
Cost Center: Facilities Maintenance 51830P0 50.000200

Purdy Transfer Station
0122134000
0222183000
0222183007  $              2,923  $                        -    $          2,923 Public Works & Utilities 470-01 Cost Center: Waste Reduction & Recycling 53700P0 50.000200

TOTALS 22,024$            179$                     22,203$        

Gig Harbor Fire & Medic One Pierce County FPD # 5

Page 6 of 6





 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-07 
May 23, 2023 

 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Fire Commissioners of Pierce County Fire Protection 
District No. 5 hereby adopts the attached Capital Asset Policy which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference and shall supersede and replace all prior editions of the 
policy: 
 
Capital Asset Policy #6000.2.  
 
Approved at a regular meeting of the Board of Fire Commissioners, Pierce County Fire 
Protection District No. 5, this 23rd day of May, 2023. 

 
PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 

      DISTRICT NO. 5 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Chairman 

 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 

 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
District Secretary 



Created: May 18, 2023  Reviewed/Revised: 
Page 1 of 5 

GIG HARBOR FIRE & MEDIC ONE 
Organizational Policy 

 
 
 
 
Title:   Capital Assets 
 
Reference:  6000.2 
 
Applies to:  All Personnel 
 
Approved by:  Assistant Chief Perry Oldenburg 

   Finance Director Krystal Hackmeister 

1.0 PURPOSE 

This policy is established to provide guidelines to ensure adequate stewardship over District 
resources through control and accountability of capital assets, and to collect and maintain 
complete and accurate capital assets information required for preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  

2.0 DEFINITIONS 

Assets - are resources expected to add value to the organization. Assets may be real, intangible 
or tangible property and acquired through purchase, donation or construction.  

Attractive (Theft Sensitive) Assets - are portable, durable items that do not meet the minimum 
capitalization threshold, but require special attention because of their potential to be stolen. 
Examples of these items include but are not limited to computers, laptops, tablets portable 
radios, mobile radios, SCBA, Apparatus Mobile Data Computers, thermal imagers, and cell 
phones. Regardless of initial acquisition cost, these items are tagged and tracked by the District, 
but are not capitalized.  

Capital Assets - are expensive long-lived assets such as land, buildings, improvements, 
infrastructure, software, machinery and equipment. These assets can be tangible or intangible 
assets. The original cost (or fair market value if received by donation) of the asset must exceed 
the cost threshold amount set out for its asset category. The estimated useful life of the asset 
must exceed one year. Examples of items not considered to be capital are painting, new carpet 
and office remodeling.   

Capital Asset Cost Threshold - is the minimum cost per unit at which an asset must be valued to 
be considered a capital asset. The various capital asset categories have different cost thresholds 
as set out in this policy. Assets purchased with grant funds may have a different threshold 
amount as stipulated by the grant. Usage and disposal of assets acquired by a grant are subject 



Created: May 18, 2023  Reviewed/Revised: 
Page 2 of 5 

to the grant agreement which supersedes this policy.   

Capital Lease - is any agreement entered into by the District involving the lease of property and 
granting the lessor rights to the property similar to those rights which would have existed if the 
agreement had been that of an outright purchase.  For accounting purposes, such leases will be 
accounted for as capital leases when the lease agreement meets GAAP criteria and the District’s 
capital threshold.   

Fixed Assets  

Fixed assets are tangible, non-consumable items including, but not limited to: land, buildings, 
machinery, equipment, and vehicles owned by the District valued at $10,000 or more with a life 
expectancy of over one year.  The value of the fixed asset includes the purchase price plus sales 
tax, as well as costs to acquire (shipping and handling), install (excluding site preparation costs), 
secure, and prepare an item for its intended use.  Improvements to an existing asset that 
extends the life of the asset are capitalized.  

Small & Attractive Assets  

Assets valued at less than $10,000 that are defined as high risk for theft.  These assets are not 
normally consumed within one year.  These assets may include items in one or more of the 
following categories:  

a. Portable and marketable, either alone or as a component unit.  
b. Assets that can be utilized for personal gain.  
c. Assets repeatedly reported as lost and/or stolen within the industry and society.  
d. Assets considered small and attractive include but are not limited to the following: 

1. District credit cards 
2. Portable Radios 
3. Mobile Radios 
4. SCBA 
5. Apparatus Mobile Data Computers 
6. Laptops/tablets 
7. Thermal Imagers 
8. Cell Phones  

Responsibility: Logistics Division is responsible for tracking, inventory and safekeeping of all 
assets assigned to the department. Each division is responsible for notifying the Logistics Chief, 
in writing, any assets purchased, sold, traded, transferred, surplused, lost or stolen. The 
Logistics division is responsible for keeping and updating the fixed asset information, 
coordinating the physical inventory process and developing procedures for the safeguarding of 
assets. 

Capital Outlay: All assets with a cost of $10,000 or more will be recorded as capital outlay. 
Although Small and Attractive Assets (assets costing less than $10,000) do not meet the 
district's capital outlay threshold, due to ease of conversion to private use, they are considered 
assets for purposes of marking and identification, records keeping, and tracking. 



Created: May 18, 2023  Reviewed/Revised: 
Page 3 of 5 

3.0 REQUIREMENTS 

The State of Washington Office of State Auditor Accounting Guidance (BARS) Cash manual, 
states the following, in part:  

Capital Assets Management System (3.3.8.10): A capital assets management system is the set of 
policies and procedures used to control District’s capital assets.  The system should satisfy 
accounting/reporting requirements and it should demonstrate accountability for the capital 
assets.  

Physical Inventory (3.3.8.60):  A physical inventory of the capital assets is necessary to verify 
that the assets still exist; it also provides updates on the condition of the assets.  This 
information demonstrates that the District is exercising its custodial responsibility for the asset. 

The documentation will be retained in accordance with the Washington State Retention 
Records Schedule and must be retained until after the next annual audit. 

4.0 CAPITALIZATION THRESHOLD 

All assets with a cost of $10,000 or more shall be capitalized.  Although Small and Attractive 
Assets (assets costing less than $10,000) do not meet the District’s capitalization threshold, 
they are considered assets for purposes of marking and identification, recordkeeping, and 
tracking.   

The following table provides the capitalization threshold for each category of capital asset: 

Asset Category Examples Dollar Threshold 
Land Property parcels, Right of way, Easements Capitalize All 
Land Improvements Walkways Parking lots Landscaping 50,000 
Buildings & Improvements Structure Major 

refurbishment/renovation , New roof 
50,000 

Improvements other than 
Buildings 

Park developments Playgrounds, 
Drainage  

50,000 

Infrastructure Roadways, sidewalks, Bike paths, bridges, 
Marina, utility lines 

50,000 

Intangible Assets Software developed or obtained for 
internal use 

50,000 

Leasehold Improvements Land/building improvements made to 
leased property 

50,000 

Capital leases Capital leases 25,000 
Network/Communications/Misc. 
Electronic Systems Equipment 

Switches / radio systems / pay stations, 
Servers, etc. 

25,000 

Machinery & Equipment General tools, printers, copiers, Office 
equipment, Office furniture, IT 
equipment, audio/visual equipment 

10,000 

Fleet Replacements Vehicles, machinery and equipment 
replaced by Fleet 

10,000 



Created: May 18, 2023  Reviewed/Revised: 
Page 4 of 5 

5.0 IMPROVEMENT/REPAIR/MAINTENANCE EXPENSES  

Routine repair and maintenance costs will be expensed as they are incurred and will not be 
capitalized.  Major repairs will be capitalized if they result in betterments/ improvements to the 
District’s capital assets.  To the extent that a project replaces the “old” part of a capital asset, 
outlays will not be capitalized; and to the extent that the project is betterment/improvement, 
outlays will be capitalized. 

6.0 VALUATION OF CAPITAL ASSESTS 

The District reports its financial activity on a cash basis. Expenditures for capital assets will be 
expensed at cost in the period the expenditure occurred. 

7.0 TAGGING NEW ASSETS 

All assets fitting descriptions of a fixed asset, small and attractive asset, and/or high-risk asset 
(other than infrastructure, vehicles, small tools, and computer) shall be recorded on asset 
listings maintained by the Logistics Division.  All assets that are surplused or traded-in shall be 
removed from the fixed asset tracking.    

8.0 DISPOSITION/TRANSFER OF FIXED ASSETS: 

It is the responsibility of each division to report all fixed asset disposition and transfers to the 
Logistics Chief to ensure that proper record keeping is maintained.  

a. Disposition of Fixed Assets means ownership changes and includes selling, trading-
in, salvaging, junking, donating or otherwise removing the Fixed Asset.  

b. Transfer between fire departments and other governmental entities shall comply 
with RCW 39.33.020 when the estimated value being transferred is more than 
$50,000. 

9.0 DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS ITEMS 

a. Before an asset is sold or otherwise disposed of, it must first be determined if the asset had 
originally been purchased with grant monies.  If this is the case, the District must refer to 
the grant agreement and follow prescribed procedures for disposition and compliance 
under 2 CFR 200 Subpart D, Post Federal Award Requirements. 

b. Authority for surplus property with an estimated value under $10,000, as surplus, for sale or 
disposal is delegated to the Fire Chief or their designee. 

c. Board may first declare an asset surplus before it can be sold for items valued at $10,000 
and above, or otherwise disposed of.  If the asset is to be sold, it will then be sold in 
accordance with applicable state law.   

d. If the asset is no longer in working order and cannot reasonably be repaired for re-sale, the 
division manager, along with one other member of the management team will properly 
dispose of the asset and provide written documentation of disposal.  



Created: May 18, 2023  Reviewed/Revised: 
Page 5 of 5 

10.0 LOST, STOLEN, OR MISSING PROPERTY 

When suspected or known losses of capital assets or small and attractive items occur, staff 
should conduct a search for the missing property.  If the missing property is not found:   

a. Notify the Company Officer, followed by the BC, then DC.  
b. Have the individual deemed to be primarily responsible for the asset, as well as that 

individual’s supervisor, complete and sign the Lost or Damaged Property, Apparatus, 
Equipment Form: a statement to include a description of events surrounding the 
disappearance of the property, who was notified of the loss, and steps taken to 
locate the property.  

c. The Finance division shall report known or suspected losses of capital assets to the 
State Auditor’s office in accordance with RCW 43.09.185.  







Pierce County Fire Protection District #5 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 
 

1 
 

 
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
The Pierce County Fire Protection District #5 was incorporated in 1945 and operates under the laws of 
the state of Washington applicable to Chapter 52 RCW and other laws of the state of Washington 
applicable to fire districts. The district is a special purpose local government and provides fire protection 
and emergency medical services to the general public and is supported primarily through property 
taxes.   
 
The district reports financial activity in accordance with the Cash Basis Budgeting, Accounting and 
Reporting System (BARS) Manual prescribed by the State Auditor’s Office under the authority of 
Washington State law, Chapter 43.09 RCW. This manual prescribes a financial reporting framework that 
differs from generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the following manner: 
 

• Financial transactions are recognized on a cash basis of accounting as described below. 
• Component units are required to be disclosed, but are not included in the financial statements 

(see Notes to the Financial Statements). 
• Government-wide statements, as defined in GAAP, are not presented. 
• All funds are presented, rather than a focus on major funds. 
• The Schedule of Liabilities is required to be presented with the financial statements as 

supplementary information. 
• Supplementary information required by GAAP is not presented. 
• Ending balances are presented using classifications that are similar from the ending net position 

classifications in GAAP. 
 
A. Fund Accounting 
Financial transactions of the government are reported in individual funds. Each fund uses a separate set 
of self-balancing accounts that comprises its cash and investments, revenues and expenditures. The 
government’s resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds depending on their 
intended purpose. Each fund is reported as a separate column in the financial statements, except for 
fiduciary funds, which are presented by fund types. The total column is presented as “memo only” 
because any interfund activities are not eliminated. The following fund types are used: 
 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES:   
 
General Fund 
This fund is the primary operating fund of the government. It accounts for all financial resources 
except those required or elected to be accounted for in another fund. 
 

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.09&full=true
https://sao.wa.gov/bars_cash/reporting/notes-to-financial-statements/note-x-component-units-joint-ventures-and-related-parties/


Pierce County Fire Protection District #5 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 
 

2 
 

Debt Service Funds 
These funds account for the financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to 
expenditures for principal, interest and related costs on general long-term debt. 
 
Capital Projects Funds 
These funds account for financial resources which are restricted, committed, or assigned for the 
acquisition or construction of capital facilities or other capital assets. 
 
FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES: 
 
Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity or as a custodian 
on behalf of others. 
 
Custodial Funds 
These funds are used to account assets that the government holds on behalf of others in a 
custodial capacity. 

 
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 
Financial statements are prepared using the cash basis of accounting and measurement focus. Revenues 
are recognized when cash is received and expenditures are recognized when paid.  
 
C. Cash and Investments 
See Note 4 - Deposits and Investments. 
 
D. Capital Assets 
Capital assets are assets with an initial individual cost of more than $10,000 and an estimated useful life 
in excess of 1 year. Capital assets and inventory are recorded as capital expenditures when purchased. 
 
E. Compensated Absences 
Compensated leave accruals are based upon an employee’s collective bargaining agreement or personal 
services contract. Vacation leave may be accumulated up to 1176 hours based upon an employee’s 
collective bargaining agreement or personal services contract and is payable upon separation or 
retirement. Sick leave may be accumulated up to 1,439 hours based upon an employee’s collective 
bargaining agreement or personal services contract. Upon separation or retirement 
employees do receive payment for unused sick leave. Payments are recognized as expenditures when 
paid.  
 
The table below shows the accrual limits and payouts applicable to an employee’s contract.  
 



Pierce County Fire Protection District #5 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 
 

3 
 

 
 
The District has $4,960,137.45 in compensated absence liability for 2022, the detail by leave type is listed 
in the table below.  
 

Compensated 
Absences 

2022 
Liability 

Comp Time 231,316.69  
Holiday 168,115.37  
Sick Leave 2,314,245.18  
Vacation 2,246,460.22  

Total 4,960,137.45  
 
F. Long-Term Debt 
See Note 7 – Long-Term Debt (formerly Debt Service Requirements). 
 
G. Restricted and Committed Portion of Ending Cash and Investments 
Beginning and Ending Cash and Investments are reported as restricted or committed when it is subject 
to restrictions on use imposed by external parties or due to internal commitments established by the 
Board of Fire Commissioners. When expenditures that meet restrictions are incurred, the district intends 
to use the most restricted resources first. 
 

Fund Name 

Portion of 
Ending Balance 

Restricted 

Portion of 
Ending Balance 

Committed Combined 
Reason for Restriction or 
Commitment 

GO Bond Fund 143,711 0 143,711 Bond Issuance Debt Service 
Expenses 

Capital Project Fund 50,139,722 0 50,139,722 Bond Issuance Capital 
Expenses 

Totals 50,283,434 0 50,283,434  
 
Restrictions and commitments of Ending Cash and Investments consist of $50,283,434. 
 

Accrual Limit Payout Accrual Limit Payout Accrual Limit Payout
Uniformed Personnel 24 hr Shift 1080 100% 1439 35% 72 100%
Uniformed Personnel Day Shift 912 100% 1136 35% 72 100%
Non-Uniformed Support Staff 894 100% 1136 35% 40 100%
Executive Staff 1176 100% 1136 35% N/A N/A

Vacation Sick Leave Comp Time



Pierce County Fire Protection District #5 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 
 

4 
 

Note 2 - Budget Compliance  
 
The district adopts annual appropriated budgets for its operating fund. These budgets are appropriated 
at the fund level. The budget constitutes the legal authority for expenditures at that level. Annual 
appropriations for these funds lapse at the fiscal year end. 
 
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted on the same basis of accounting as used for financial 
reporting. 
 
The appropriated and actual expenditures for the legally adopted budgets were as follow: 
 

Fund/Department 
Final Appropriated 

Amounts 
Actual 

Expenses Variance Explanation of Variances 
001 - General 
Expense Fund 33,111,113  32,033,819  1,077,294  

Capital purchases will arrive in 
2023 and 2024. 

 
The 2022 budget was adopted by the District’s governance board on 11/23/21 via Resolution 2021-25. 
 
Budgeted amounts are authorized to be transferred between departments within any fund/object 
classes within departments; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of a fund, or that 
affect the number of authorized employee positions, salary ranges, hours, or other conditions of 
employment must be approved by the district’s legislative body. 
 

Title for Disclosure Details for Disclosure 
Budget Amendments No budget amendments in 2022 fiscal year 
Budget Compliance Remained under budget in 2022 fiscal year 

 
Note 3 – COVID-19 Pandemic 
 
In February 2020, the Governor of the state of Washington declared a state of emergency in response to 
the spread of the deadly new virus known as COVID-19. In the months following the declaration, 
precautionary measures to slow the spread of the virus were ordered. These measures included closing 
schools, cancelling public events, limiting public and private gatherings, and restricting business 
operations, travel and non-essential activities. 
 
The District continued to experience expenses related to both staffing and supplies, however at a 
smaller pace than experienced in 2020-2021. During 2022, Ambulance transports generally returned to 
existing levels, continued use of existing PPE, and supporting the COVID-19 quarantine protocols were 
minimal in 2022 in relation to 2020-2021. In 2022, the District maintained staffing for the Medical 
Services Officer (MSO) roles in supporting the pandemic response.  
 



Pierce County Fire Protection District #5 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 
 

5 
 

The District continues to utilize the FEMA Public Assistance where available and has been successful in 
utilizing state and federal program funding through 2022. 
 
The length of time these measures will continue to be in place, and the full extent of the financial impact 
on the district is unknown at this time. 
 
Note 4 – Deposits and Investments 
 
Investments are reported at amortized cost. Deposits and investments by type at December 31, 2022 
are as follows: 

Type of Deposit or 
Investment 

District's own 
deposits & 

investments 

Deposits & investments held by the 
District as custodian for other local 

governments, individuals, or private 
organizations. Combined 

County Investment Pool 67,652,388 0 67,652,388 
County Cash on Hand 2,182,523 0 2,182,523 

Bank Deposits 35,580 0 35,580 
Totals 69,870,491 0 69,870,491 

 
The District’s investments are held by Pierce County as its agent in the District’s name. It is the district’s 
policy to invest all temporary cash surpluses.  The interest on these investments is prorated to the 
various funds. 
 
Investments in the State Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) 
The district is a voluntary participant in the Local Government Investment Pool, an external investment 
pool operated by the Washington State Treasurer.  The pool is not rated and not registered with the 
SEC.  Rather, oversight is provided by the State Finance Committee in accordance with Chapter 43.250 
RCW.  Investments in the LGIP are reported at amortized cost, which is the same as the value of the pool 
per share.  The LGIP does not impose any restrictions on participant withdrawals. 
 
The Office of the State Treasurer prepares a stand-alone financial report for the pool.  A copy of the 
report is available from the Office of the State Treasurer, PO Box 40200, Olympia, Washington 98504-
0200, online at www.tre.wa.gov. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in event of a failure of a depository financial institution, 
the district would not be able to recover deposits or would not be able to recover collateral securities 
that are in possession of an outside party. The district’s deposits and certificates of deposit are mostly 
covered by federal depository insurance (FDIC) or by collateral held in a multiple financial institution 
collateral pool administered by the Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC). 
 

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=43.250
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=43.250
http://www.tre.wa.gov/


Pierce County Fire Protection District #5 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 

6 

All investments are insured, registered or held by the district or its agent in the government’s name. 

Note 5 – Joint Ventures, Component Unit(s), and Related Parties 

The District is the lead agency for a county-wide special-operations response team (PCSORT) made up of 
employees from participating districts.  Equipment and supply costs associated with the team are split 
equally between the participating districts.  A PCSORT policy board consisting of employees and 
commissioners from each of the participating district provides oversight to the team.  The PCSORT policy 
board adopts a mutually agreed annual budget and the participating districts remit advance operating 
funds each year to the lead agency as needed.  At the end of each budget year any remaining funds are 
retained by the lead agency for future capital expenses by the team.  As of 12/31/2022 the following 
districts are members of PCSORT: Gig Harbor Fire – lead agency, West Pierce Fire, Central Pierce Fire and 
East Pierce Fire. 

The District has a related party relationship with South Sound 911 as the District’s and regional provider 
for emergency dispatch services. On December 22, 2019, South Sound 911 transitioned from an 
interlocal administrative agency to a Public Development Authority (PDA) in accordance with RCW 
35.21.730-755 (Resolution 2019-13). The former governing bodies, the Policy Board and Operations 
Board, were dissolved and the 11-member Board of Directors became the sole governing body to which 
the South Sound 911 executive director reports.  

All local government agencies contracting for the agency’s services are represented on the board, either 
directly or indirectly. A separate Public Safety Communications Operations Committee of police and fire 
chiefs advise the Board of Directors and executive director on any matters related to South Sound 911 
operations.  

Board members are elected officials with representation that is reflective of the agency’s customer 
base. Seats on the board are allocated among South Sound 911’s member agencies based on the 
relative size of the most recently approved annual Communications Assessments payable by member 
agencies. Terms are three (years) and there are no term limits. In 2022, the District paid South 
Sound 911 $341,970 for emergency dispatching services. 

Note 6 – Leases 

During the year ending 2022, the district adopted guidance for the presentation and disclosure of leases, 
as required by the BARS manual. This requirement resulted in the addition of a lease liability reported on 
the Schedule of Liabilities. 

The district leases 10 printer/copies from Kelley Connect for $1,259 per month under a five year lease 
agreement that is non-cancelable and irrevocable, it cannot be terminated. 



Pierce County Fire Protection District #5 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 
 

7 
 

 
The district leases gas monitor medical equipment from Industrial Scientific Corporation for $1,746 per 
month under a four year lease that can be cancelled with 60 days’ notice of the initial or renewal term. 
 
The total amount paid for leases in 2022 was $31,619.68. As of December 31, 2022, the future lease 
payments are as follows: 
 

Year Lease Payments 
2023 37,979 
2024 36,669 
2025 36,669 
2026 10,042 
Total 121,357 

 
Note 7 – Long-Term Debt (formerly Debt Service Requirements) 
 
The accompanying Schedule of Liabilities provides more details of the outstanding debt and liabilities of 
the district and summarizes the district’s debt transactions for year ended December 31, 2022. 
 
On August 2, 2022, the District’s voters approved Proposition No. 1, Bonds for Fire Stations and Training 
Facility, issuing no more than $80 million general obligation bonds maturing within 20 years and levy 
annual excess property taxes to repay the bonds, as provided in Resolution No. 2022-03. 
 
The District received an AA Bond Rating from S&P Global in November 2022 and completed a 20-year 
general obligation bond sale in December 2022.  
 
The debt service requirements for general obligation bonds (voter approved) are as follows: 
 

Year Principal Interest Total Debt Service 
2023 1,610,000 2,098,099 3,708,099 
2024 2,040,000 2,047,150 4,087,150 
2025 2,265,000 1,945,150 4,210,150 
2026 925,000 1,831,900 2,756,900 
2027 1,105,000 1,785,650 2,890,650 

2028-2032 8,035,000 7,932,000 15,967,000 
2033-2037 12,820,000 5,495,800 18,315,800 
2038-2042 18,635,000 2,337,400 20,972,400 

Totals 47,435,000 25,473,149 72,908,149 



Pierce County Fire Protection District #5 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 
 

8 
 

 
 
Note 8 – Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB Plans) 
 
The LEOFF I Retiree Medical Plan is a closed, single-employer, defined-benefit OPEB plan administered 
by the district. The plan pays for 100% of eligible retirees’ healthcare costs on a pay-as-you-go basis. As 
of December 31, 2022, the plan had three (3) members, all retirees. As of December 31, 2022, the 
district’s total OPEB liability was $1,269,071, as calculated using the alternative measurement method. 
For the year ended December 31, 2022, the district paid $50,835.59 in benefits. 
 
Retiree Medical Benefit on February 26, 2019, the District Board of Governance adopted Resolution 
2019-03, which amended Resolution 2014-03, and provides for a fixed monthly amount of $527 to be 
paid to non-LEOFF 1 retirees for purposes of post-retirement medical expenditures. Retires under the 
prior Resolution provides a fixed monthly amount of $500. The plan may be changed or discontinued by 
a resolution of the Board. Employees wishing to participate must notify the District by October 1st of the 
previous year and the receipt of benefits ends upon the earlier of twelve years, eligibility for Medicare 
or death of the retiree. This defined benefit OPEB plan is administered by Gig Harbor Fire Union Health 
and Welfare Trust on a pay-as-you-go basis. 
 
For the December 31, 2022 reporting period, using the plan’s valuation date had 124 active members 
and 12 retired members. As of December 31, 2022, the actuarial OPEB liability of the plan was 
$1,275,657. The District paid $112,212 in benefits for the year ended December 31, 2022. 
 
Note 9 – Pension Plans 
 
A. State Sponsored Pension Plans 
 
Substantially all the district’s full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in the following 
statewide retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement 
Systems (DRS), under cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and defined 
contribution retirement plans. 
 
The State Legislature establishes, and amends, laws pertaining to the creation and administration of all 
public retirement systems. 
 
The Department of Retirement Systems, a department within the primary government of the State of 
Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information for each plan. The DRS CAFR may be 
obtained by writing to: 
 



Pierce County Fire Protection District #5 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 
 

9 
 

Department of Retirement Systems 
Communications Unit 
P.O. Box 48380 
Olympia, WA 98540-8380 

 
Also, the DRS CAFR may be downloaded from the DRS website at www.drs.wa.gov. 
 
The district also participates in the Volunteer Fire Fighters’ and Reserve Officers’ Relief and Pension 
Fund (VFFRPF) administered by the State Board for Volunteer Fire Fighters and Reserve Officers. 
Detailed information about the plan is included in the State of Washington CAFR available from the 
Office of Financial Management website at www.ofm.wa.gov. 
 
At June 30, 2022 (the measurement date of the plans), the district’s proportionate share of the 
collective net pension liabilities, as reported on the Schedule of Liabilities, was as follows: 
 

Plan Type Employer 
Contributions 

Allocation 
Percentage 

Plan Liability / 
Asset 

NPL NPA 

PERS 1 UAAL 52,320  0.00853700% 2,784,367,000  237,701    
PERS 2/3 89,684  0.01116400% (3,708,781,000)   (414,048) 
LEOFF 1   0.01236300% (2,868,613,000)   (354,647) 
LEOFF 2 831,034  0.40140800% (2,717,698,000)   (10,909,057) 
VFFRPF 120  0.06000000% (28,264,000)   (17,838) 
    Totals   $237,701  $(11,695,590) 

 
LEOFF Plan 1 
The district also participates in LEOFF Plan 1. The LEOFF Plan 1 is fully funded and no further employer 
contributions have been required since June 2000. If the plan becomes underfunded, funding of the 
remaining liability will require new legislation. Starting on July 1, 2000, employers and employees 
contribute zero percent. 
 
LEOFF Plan 2 
The district also participates in the LEOFF Plan 2. The Legislature, by means of a special funding 
arrangement, appropriates money from the state general fund to supplement the current service 
liability and fund the prior service costs of Plan 2 in accordance with the recommendations of the 
Pension Funding Council and the LEOFF Plan 2 Retirement Board. This special funding situation is not 
mandated by the state constitution and could be changed by statute. 
 
C. Defined Contribution Pension Plans 
Section 457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan Eligible employees may participate in a 457(b) deferred 
compensation plan. The District makes contributions to this plan at rates dependent on the provisions of 

http://www.drs.wa.gov/
http://www.ofm.wa.gov/


Pierce County Fire Protection District #5 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 
 

10 
 

either an employee’s collective bargaining agreement or personal services agreement. The collective 
bargaining agreement agrees to contribute a monthly minimum of 35% of the identified maximum 
matching amount identified below on behalf of each employee affected by the agreement if the 
employee matches any portion thereof. The District also matches monthly the employees’ contribution 
amounts above 35% at an amount no greater than $725. The District matches employees under 
personal services contracts at 6% or a maximum of a monthly fixed amount of $725, whichever is 
greater.  
 
In 2022, employees had a choice of multiple plan providers including the State of Washington DCP, 
Fidelity and Decision Point. In 2022, The District made contributions totaling $1,146,494.22 to this plan. 
 
Note 10 - Property Tax 
 
The county treasurer acts as an agent to collect property tax levied in the county for all taxing 
authorities. Collections are distributed at the end of each month. 
 
Property tax revenues are recognized when cash is received by district. Delinquent taxes are considered 
fully collectible because a lien affixes to the property after tax is levied. 
 
The district’s regular levy for the year 2022 was $ 1.369328402817 per $1,000 on an assessed valuation 
of $15,384,235,043 for a total regular levy of $ 21,066,070.00. 
 
The district’s EMS levy for the year 2022 was $ 0.439762772155 per $1,000 on an assessed valuation of 
$ 15,384,235,043 for a total EMS levy of $ 6765,413.85. 
 
Note 11 – Risk Management 
 
The District maintains insurance through a collective interlocal agreement for joint insurance purchasing 
with includes neighboring Fire Districts to include property and general liability insurance on an annual 
basis effective October 1st of each year. In 2022, the plan provider was Arch with Fournier Insurance 
Solutions as the plan broker.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Pierce County Fire Protection District #5 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 

11 

Coverage Limit Deductible 
Commercial General Liability 10,000,000 
Automobile Liability 1,000,000 
Umbrella Liability 10,000,000 
Workers Comp & Employer's Liability 1,000,000 
Public Official Bond 50,000 

Apparatus & Equipment Coverage 
  Emergency Apparatus 5,000 
  Portable equipment 5,000 
  Other Property 250 

Cyber Policies 
  Network Security & Privacy Liability 1,000,000 10,000 
  Media Liability 1,000,000 10,000 
  Data Incident Response Expense Coverage 1,000,000 10,000 
  Business Interruption Coverage 1,000,000 10,000 
  Cyber Extortion Coverage 1,000,000 10,000 

Medical and dental insurance for employees is administrated through Gig Harbor Firefighters Health and 
Welfare Trust and the plan provider is Lucent. Non-trust enrollments (only available to the exempt 
employees) medical and vision are provided through Premera and VSP with Olympic Crest Insurance as 
the plan broker.  

The District’s industrial insurance is provided by Washington State and is administered by the 
Department of Labor and Industries. 

Unemployment compensation is managed through the State of Washington, which provides some 
compensation to workers who are temporarily and involuntarily unemployed. It is administered in 
Washington State by the Employment Security Department in accordance with provisions of the 
Employment Security Act. The District’s employer status for unemployment insurance is as a 
"reimbursable" employer. In 2022, the district paid out a total of $0 in unemployment claims.  

Note 12 – Prior Period Adjustments 

The District reported an understatement of the ending fund balances in the 2021 financial statements. 
For the period ending December 31, 2022, this includes a prior period adjustment totaling $764.14 to 
account for the variance between the 2021 audited financial statement’s ending fund balance to the 
2022 beginning fund balances. This adjustment was necessary to align the cash and investment balances 
of the financial system and corresponding bank accounts.  
















	2023-05-23 AGENDA
	May 23, 2023 (Hybrid Meeting)

	SS911 Letter
	Commissioner Mtg 05-09-2023
	COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING MINUTES
	APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
	COMMISSIONER ABSENCE
	COMMUNICATIONS
	LOCAL 3390 REPORTS
	CHIEFS REPORTS
	STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS
	CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
	OLD BUSINESS
	NEW BUSINESS
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	GOOD OF THE ORDER
	ADJOURNMENT

	Voucher Totals - 05082023 Payroll
	Voucher Approvals - 05082023 Payroll
	Voucher Totals - 05.09.23
	Voucher Approvals - 05.09.23
	Voucher Totals - 05.16.23
	Voucher Approvals #1 - 05.16.23
	Voucher Approvals #2 - 05.16.23
	2022AnnualReport_Draft_5.12.2023_toBoardFireCommissioners.pdf
	2022_C-4_SAOSite
	2022_C-5_SAOSite
	2022 Notes to Financial Statements_clean
	Note 3 – COVID-19 Pandemic

	Schedule01_SAOSite
	Schedule09_SAOSite
	Schedule15_SAOSite
	Schedule16_SAOSite
	2022 Schedule 16 Notes
	Schedule21_FY20_v20-2
	Schedule22_SAOSite
	Schedule22_Attachment Inventory List

	5 Gig Harbor SC-110108.pdf
	5 Gig Harbor
	FPD5 Gig Harbor Contract
	FPD 5 Chart
	Sheet1


	FPD 5 Chart
	Sheet1


	ADP8034.tmp
	2.0 DEFINITIONS
	3.0 REQUIREMENTS
	5.0 IMPROVEMENT/REPAIR/MAINTENANCE EXPENSES
	6.0 VALUATION OF CAPITAL ASSESTS
	7.0 TAGGING NEW ASSETS
	8.0 DISPOSITION/TRANSFER OF FIXED ASSETS:
	9.0 DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS ITEMS
	10.0 LOST, STOLEN, OR MISSING PROPERTY

	2022 Year End Financial Update.pdf
	2022 Year End �Financial Update
	2022 Cash & Investments
	Investment Performance
	Property Tax
	Ambulance Transport & GEMT
	Revenues
	Revenue Detail
	2022 Expenses
	Expense Detail
	2022 Expenses in upcoming budgets
	Expense Highlights
	Budget vs Actuals Outcome
	2022 Year End Outcome




